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 1        BE IT REMEMBERED that on the 27th day of September

 2   at the hour of 6:00 p.m.  the Public Comment Hearing

 3   was taken before Jody K. Pope, Notary Public and

 4   Registered Professional Reporter, CSR No. 3114 (WA) 939

 5   (ID), at Spokane City Hall, 808 W. Spokane Falls

 6   Boulevard, Spokane, Washington.
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 1   

 2            BY CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  So why don't we get

 3   started.  We will be on the record then.  For the

 4   record, this is a public hearing this evening.  It's

 5   Washington Utilities Transportation Commission Docket,

 6   UE-120436 and UG-120437 involving Avista Utilities.

 7   It's consolidated with the coming phase of the early

 8   docket, UE-110876 and UG-110877.

 9            Good evening, my name is Jeff Goltz.  I'm

10   chairman of the Commission.  With me are Commissioner

11   Patrick Oshie and Phillip Jones; Mr. Oshie on my left,

12   and Mr. Jones on my right.

13            For those of you that have participated in

14   public hearings before, we're going to do something a

15   little bit different tonight.  We thought it might be

16   useful, rather than having me or someone else kind of

17   give an overview of the process orally, we've actually

18   prepared a video, that gives a little bit of an

19   overview of the Commission and the process and the rate

20   process and public hearing process.  So technology

21   permitting, we will show that in just a minute or two.

22            But first -- And after that, we will take

23   comments from those members of the public here who wish

24   to give testimony or statements regarding the pending

25   Avista rate case.  And after the video, we'll go over a
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 1   little bit more details about that.  First, there are a

 2   number of people here.  This is a part of the formal

 3   proceeding.  This is the public comment phase of that.

 4   We will have hearings in November in Olympia that

 5   involve more of the evidentiary phase of the hearing

 6   where we hear witnesses and testimony and examining

 7   witnesses involving the company, the Commission Staff,

 8   Office of Public Counsel, and various other parties.

 9            I would like now -- the attorney -- Well, some

10   of the attorneys and some of the parties are here today

11   and I would like them to introduce themselves for the

12   record, and if they wish, if they want to introduce

13   some of the other people they have with them.

14            So why don't we start with the Commission

15   Staff, Mr. Fassio?

16                  MR. FASSIO:  Michael Fassio, I'm an

17   assistant attorney general representing the Washington

18   Utilities Commission Staff.

19            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  You will see this in the

20   video also, but the Utilities Commission Staff is

21   separate from us.  We will have our own body of

22   advisors and they serve as an independent party.  We

23   will go to Mr. ffitch.

24            MR. FFITCH:  Good evening.  My name is Simon

25   ffitch.  I'm with the Office of Public Counsel.  We're
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 1   the representatives of the customers, primarily

 2   residential and small business customers, in the rate

 3   case.  And we have prepared an information sheet, which

 4   is out on the front table, describing a little bit

 5   about the case and our position so far.  I would be

 6   happy to speak with anybody after this if you would

 7   like to meet with me.

 8            MR. GOLTZ:  Mr. Meyer?

 9            MR. MEYER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and

10   members of the Commission.  I'm David Meyer, I'm the

11   officer of the company.  And with us today we have Mr.

12   Scott Morris.  Scott, if you would stand, he's our

13   chairman of the board, and chief executive officer;

14   Dennis Vermillion, president of the company; and Kelly

15   Norwood, who is vice president in charge of rates and

16   regulations.  We, too, have several representatives who

17   can answer questions afterwards or during a break.

18            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  Mr. Meyer has a good point.

19   If you do have questions about -- specific questions

20   about the filing, it would be appropriate after this

21   hearing to approach either the company, Mr. Fassio, or

22   Mr. ffitch, representatives of the Commission Staff and

23   the Office of Public Counsel and they can help you with

24   that.  If any of you have any other issues, questions

25   about your utility services, utility bill, there are
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 1   members of the company here, representatives of the

 2   company here, and also the gentleman you saw coming in,

 3   Mr. Roger Kouchi works with the Commission Staff, and

 4   he is with our Consumer Affairs Office.  So part of the

 5   goal of the Consumer Affairs Office within the

 6   Utilities Transportation Commission is to assist

 7   consumers in any complaints or problems they may have

 8   with their utilities.  This isn't limited to Avista.

 9   If you have questions about a phone company or others,

10   please see Mr. Kouchi as well.

11            So with that, I would like you to bear with me

12   for about ten minutes while we show a brief video that

13   should orient you to the process.  It will keep me

14   quiet for that time.  Otherwise, I would be saying much

15   of this.

16            My name is Roger Kouchi, I was asked to show

17   you how to get to our video from the website.  So once

18   you get to get onto the internet, you type into your

19   browser www.utc.wa.gov, which I am going to do right

20   now.  Okay.  That brings you to our home page.  From

21   our home page, you would click on the Consumer tab, and

22   then from the Consumer tab, you go to the Energy

23   Navigation, and then you just scroll down to Consumer

24   News and What's Up and Down with Energy Rates and then

25   you just click on this.
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 1            (A video was shown.)

 2            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  We will now proceed with the

 3   public comment portion of this hearing.  Thank you,

 4   Robert.  The evidentiary hearings will be held in

 5   Olympia on November 27th, continued as necessary

 6   through November 30th.  We will continue to take

 7   written comments from any members of the public through

 8   those written dates.  So what we're going to do now is

 9   we have people signed up, we will call you to be up

10   here at the microphone one at a time.  But First,

11   because this is a evidentiary proceeding, a formal

12   proceeding, I am going to ask all people who wish to or

13   might wish to present testimony to stand up and raise

14   your hand and I will put you under oath.  And then when

15   you come up to give your presentation, please speak

16   slowly and clearly, and of course, so the court

17   reporter can get down your words.

18            And if you have a written statement at the

19   time, that's fine, you can hand that up or you can hand

20   it to Mr. ffitch also, who has a combination of written

21   comments that will be placed into the record.

22            I would also call your attention -- I won't go

23   through what all the issues are in the case.  I won't

24   go through the overall rate increase request and the

25   various positions.  Mr. ffitch has kindly done that for
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 1   us in the summary information sheet that's out front.

 2   If you don't have one, you can run and get one now, or

 3   you can pick one up on the way out.

 4            So with that, I would like to ask everybody

 5   who wishes to give public comment and has signed up to

 6   stand, please, and raise your right hand.  And do you

 7   swear or affirm that the testimony you're about to give

 8   is the truth?

 9            (Public responds in the affirmative.)

10            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  Thank you.  You may be

11   seated.  And so we don't have too many people, I only

12   saw five that stood up and we only have five that

13   signed up.  So that's a happy coincidence.  So if

14   anybody gets motivated and wants to give testimony

15   later after you've heard this, that's fine.  Normally

16   we suggest to people to limit their comments to five

17   minutes, but if a person has spoken, given statements

18   before you that basically covers the same ground you

19   wish to cover, it's perfectly fine to say I agree with

20   that and it's perfectly fine to add additional

21   comments.

22            What I want you to do when I call you up one

23   at a time is to state your full name, spell the last

24   name to make sure the court reporter gets it.  Also,

25   indicate if you are an Avista electric or Avista gas
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 1   customer or both.  And if you're giving a statement on

 2   behalf or yourself, or sometimes people give it on

 3   behalf of a community organization or a neighborhood

 4   organization or a business or something like that, we

 5   like to have that information as to who you're speaking

 6   for.

 7            So we'll start with, and forgive me if I

 8   mispronounce some names, we have McAle Ezera

 9   (phonetic)?  Probably not.  Well, we have Theresa

10   Michielli.

11            MS. MICHIELLI:  Michielli.

12            COMMISSIONER GOLTZ:  You wish to give a

13   statement?  It says possibly, so I gather that's a yes.

14            MS. MICHIELLI:  It's really scary to go first.

15   My name is Theresa Michielli.  It's M-i-c-h-i-e-l-l-i.

16   I am the manager for Addus Healthcare.  We provide

17   in-home services to seniors in the community who are of

18   low income or on Medicaid.  And when we got the news

19   about this rate increase, my phones were flooded.  They

20   are very concerned with how they're going to pay even a

21   higher rate tax increase.  They have -- I have several

22   consumers who has taken advantage of that options that

23   are available, just so they can survive.

24            I want you guys to keep in mind that even

25   though it seems minimal, the seven or eight dollars
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 1   that you guys are proposing for these individuals,

 2   their average income is between $600 and $1,000 dollars

 3   a month.  So to put it in perspective, if these rate

 4   increases will not do justice for a large majority of

 5   our seniors who have a difficult time getting around

 6   and getting to speak.  So I am sent as their

 7   representative to speak on their behalf to say that,

 8   please keep in part of the budget -- we didn't see

 9   anything mentioned in that about the assistance that,

10   you know, that Avista has provided and we wish to have

11   that maintained as much as possible and to really

12   encourage that and think about really what such a large

13   increase will really do for the people in our

14   community.

15            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  Typically, and in this case,

16   there is a representative party that advocates for low

17   income consumers, in addition to the Office of Public

18   Counsel.  So we do hear presentations and information

19   about just that, but we appreciate being reminded about

20   that in public hearings.

21        A.  Thank you so much.

22            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  Thank you.  Steven Latosza?

23            MR. LATOSZA:  That's pretty good.  Latosza.

24   My name is Steven Latosza.  It's spelled L-a-t-o-s-z-a.

25   I have Avista gas and electric, and I'm here to talk
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 1   about what we just saw up here on the screen.  The

 2   first word that came out of the gentleman's mouth was

 3   safe and reliable, but the word safe came to mind.

 4            And I don't know if anyone's been here during

 5   ice storm, but a few years ago, we had just a

 6   horrendous time with trees over the lines, and in my

 7   neighborhood and throughout the whole community, the

 8   trees are over the lines again.  And I think there

 9   should be some accountability with Avista to publicly

10   state that the community is a safe environment for

11   electricity coming through our neighborhoods and have

12   it in writing.  They also -- They talk about the

13   distribution lines in here.  That's what I'm talking

14   about, the lines that go through our neighborhoods, and

15   no one was held really accountable the last time

16   because the work wasn't done and I hate to see that

17   happen again.  It's been a number of years that they've

18   had that opportunity.

19            I understand there's been problems with, you

20   know, the South Hill talking about esthetics and trees

21   and so on and that's been a rather contentious

22   discussion.  I have called Avista and mentioned about

23   trees over the lines.  They said where do you live, and

24   I says, well, what good is that going to do if half a

25   mile of trees are over the lines over there.  It's not
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 1   just about my address and where I live, it's about the

 2   whole community, whether you live in Spokane or Spokane

 3   Valley or wherever the service is provided.

 4            One other thing, too, is I noticed the water

 5   company moving their meters to the front of the house.

 6   Well, it's really difficult for a lot of consumers out

 7   there to get estimated bills that come fairly

 8   regularly.  I would prefer that if we're going to have

 9   a rate increase, let's really serve the public and get

10   continued bills that are fairly consistent instead of

11   having two or three bills together, and that can be

12   very, very, very difficult for the home owner.  And it

13   could be either in the announcement with Avista that

14   could be either in the newspaper or it could be on the

15   statement that comes to the house that the trees have

16   been cleared from the community, we have a safe

17   environment for electricity.  So those are a couple of

18   measures.

19            And I have talked to Anna at Avista and she

20   says they have an active program, and I questioned the

21   term active because I'm sure someone's going to have a

22   conversation follow up to this.  There are meter

23   readers that could easily go through the neighborhoods,

24   they need to hire someone get some software equipment

25   and just point out where these serious areas are that
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 1   are going to be problematic in the future.  So I came

 2   up to talk about the word safe in our You Tube

 3   presentation, and if anyone remembers ice storm like I

 4   did, when I had to abandon our home and no one was held

 5   accountable at that time, and I don't want to see that

 6   happen again.

 7            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  Thank you.  Commissioner

 8   Jones has a question.

 9            COMMISSIONER JONES:  Just what part of the

10   city do you live in?

11            MR. LATOSZA:  I live up on the South Hill over

12   off of Carnahan and -- But you just drive.  You don't

13   -- No one needs to tell you the trees are over the

14   lines.  Just see for yourself, just drive.  Just get in

15   your car, wherever you're going in your community and

16   just look.  It's all around you.  So it's actually been

17   neglected again and we're in for an unsafe environment

18   and I think the first duty of any company or politician

19   is to create a safe environment for their community, I

20   really do.  I think if you can't have a safe

21   environment, why would you want to live there?

22            COMMISSIONER JONES:  Okay.

23            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  Thank you.  Ms. Diane

24   Allison?

25            MS. ALLISON:  Good evening.  I had no idea
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 1   that I would be allowed to speak tonight, so I have not

 2   prepared statement.  I was a charge nurse in a large

 3   public hospital, a burn unit, L.A. County USC for 17

 4   years.  And I think I know better than anyone else in

 5   this room the consequences of what happens to the very

 6   poor when they can no longer afford their gas and

 7   lights.  Now, I get my gas and lights from Avista here

 8   in Spokane, but I'm speaking for the people who can't

 9   speak for themselves.

10            I'm thinking of a little girl who was

11   critically burned and nearly died trying to keep

12   herself warm with an open fire after her grandmother's

13   gas and lights were shut off.  I'm thinking of an

14   entire family, half of whom died from carbon monoxide

15   poisoning from an illegal heater after they lost their

16   heat.  I'm speaking for all the millions of people who

17   can be affected.  And why can't the big executives,

18   people who earn a million dollars a year or more pay

19   for part of this rate increase?  I read in the paper

20   one of the CEOs of Avista got a million dollar bonus.

21   I don't know.  I just think that's wrong.  I realize my

22   comments will fall on deaf ears, but I had to speak.

23   Thank you very much.

24            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  Thank you very much.  And I

25   can assure you these comments do not fall on deaf ears.
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 1   At the public hearing in November we will hear from a

 2   bunch of accountants and a bunch of economists, but

 3   this has the same impact and same meaning as these

 4   public hearings do.  This gives us a different

 5   perspective and we do take them very seriously.  Thank

 6   you for submitting them.

 7            We have two more people that have signed up.

 8   One is Nick Beamer.  Is that right?

 9            MR. BEAMER:  Good evening.  My name is Nick

10   Beamer, that's "B", as in boy, e-a-m-e-r, and I am both

11   an Avista electric and gas user.  This evening though,

12   I'm not here on behalf of myself, but on behalf of the

13   Planning and Management Counsel of Aging and Long-Term

14   Care of Eastern Washington, which is the area agency in

15   our region that covers Spokane, Ferry, Stevens, Pend

16   Oreille to the north, and Whitman County to the south.

17         Each year we have a chance to look at the Avista

18   rate increase, and this year, in particular, I want to

19   present this statement on behalf of the council and the

20   agency.

21            We believe that the general rate case

22   settlement increase granted to Avista for both electric

23   and natural gas annually since 2006, and the decreased

24   cost of natural gas and the resulting cessation of the

25   natural gas efficiency programs and the limited
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 1   duration of the energy recovery mechanism bill, as well

 2   as the recent and looming budget cuts that we know are

 3   going to be hitting our social services programs, we

 4   ask that only minimal electric rate increases and

 5   minimal natural gas rate increases should be granted in

 6   the 2012 general rate increase, and in particular,

 7   those as per the Public Counsel of the Attorney

 8   General's Office has recommended.

 9            I won't go over all of those recommendations,

10   but we certainly endorse their recommendations.  In

11   addition, I wanted to add that we also propose that the

12   energy assistance program funding be increased

13   sufficient to offset the rate increases, as well as

14   utilization of something called the Elder Economic

15   Security Index, which is given for each county in

16   Washington State, and I will have copies that I can

17   give to you at a later time.  But it really -- If you

18   take a look at that Elder Economic Security Index and

19   look at what should be allowed, the energy assistance

20   programs will certainly result in larger numbers of

21   individuals being served through that program than

22   currently.

23            The Federal Budget Control Act calls for

24   something called sequestration in 2013, which basically

25   for us means an across the board cut in many programs
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 1   that affect the funding we have, as well as many other

 2   programs have for low income seniors, low income adults

 3   and families.

 4            Now that cut, it goes into effect in January,

 5   will mean an eight percent reduction in funding that we

 6   have for programs that serve the seniors and younger

 7   individuals with a disability that are currently

 8   receiving our programs because they're homebound and

 9   unable to get out.  The cut includes not only ours, as

10   I said, but also the Social Services Block Grant.  It

11   affects food, it affects transportation, it effects

12   other essential services for low income individuals.

13         The rising utility costs again will only add to

14   the burden that is placed upon our vulnerable adults

15   who may have to choose between food and medicines that

16   they are currently receiving.  We have many stories

17   that come to us from individuals that we serve through

18   the state-wide health insurance benefit advisor

19   programs about, I can't take this drug anymore, I have

20   to cut it in half.  Those kinds of stories are not

21   isolated.  They are frequent.

22            So when you have a raise in a utility bill,

23   which many of our homebound do have their own home or

24   are renting a home and have to bear the cost of that.

25   Their incomes haven't gone up anywhere near the rate
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 1   increases that are proposed, they haven't for many

 2   years, and to absorb more increases in rates, they need

 3   assistance.  That's why the energy assistance programs

 4   are key, and if a rate increase is granted, an increase

 5   in those programs for assistance, both weatherization

 6   as well as energy assistance, must be part of the

 7   package that is given.

 8            We would like to have no rate increases, but I

 9   haven't seen you do that ever in the seven or eight

10   years that I've been here.  And I understand that you

11   have to look at the entire program that a particular

12   company has.  But we have looked at those rate

13   increases over the years, and I think I have here a

14   couple of things that I want to leave with you about

15   those.  When we looked at the rate increases that the

16   Utilities and Transportation Commission has granted

17   Avista through its general rate increases, there has

18   been an increase of approximately 32.7 percent for the

19   average residential electric consumers from 2006 to

20   2012.  Believe me, incomes have not gone up 32.7

21   percent for any of those individuals that I talked

22   about earlier.

23            Also, the increases in the monthly billed rate

24   are having increased from $60 dollars to almost $80

25   dollars.  When I look at that, and the average
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 1   residential gas customer, their monthly bill rate has

 2   been more variable but has increased by approximately

 3   13 percent since January of 2010.  That means, of

 4   course, to pay those rates, other things have to give

 5   in that individual's budget.

 6            I encourage you not to give rate increases

 7   anywhere near what has been proposed, and if possible,

 8   to skip a year of rate increases.  I know that it would

 9   be unusual, but it would sure be welcome by all the

10   individuals I've talked about and do represent tonight.

11   Thank you.

12            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  Can I ask you a couple of

13   questions?  Did you testify last year or the year

14   before or both when we've had these public hearings?  I

15   remember very similar testimony from someone over here.

16   Was that you or was that --

17            MR. BEAMAN:  It was probably me, but there

18   were several others that talked, too.

19            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  I think it was last year that

20   the question -- there's a question of time about the

21   fate of federal LIHEAP funds.

22            MR. BEAMAN:  Correct.

23            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  Where are we now on that or

24   where are you now?

25            MR. BEAMAN:  We don't receive those funds, so
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 1   I'm not exactly sure.  That is through SNAP.  If there

 2   was a SNAP representative here tonight, I would defer

 3   to them.

 4            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  I think it was a SNAP

 5   representative that gave that.

 6            MR. BEAMAN:  I would defer to them.

 7            MR. CHAIRMAN:  And second, the Elder Economics

 8   Security Index, what is that?

 9            MR. BEAMAN:  It's an index that really figures

10   the actual living expenses that an older adult faces,

11   whether they are renting, whether they are buying a

12   home, or they've already owned their home and don't

13   have a mortgage.  It looks at all of the living

14   expenses for food, for gas, for mortgages if they have

15   one, or rent, and figures what low income really means

16   for that population, rather than just saying, well,

17   they're at poverty level.

18            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  So is it different depending

19   on your geographic location?  So it would be different

20   in Spokane than say Pullman or say Seattle or

21   Bellingham?

22            MR. BEAMAN:  Correct.  And it's available by

23   county in this state.

24            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  Because one of the issues

25   we've had in past cases has been low income assistance
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 1   programs that the various utilities have is sort of

 2   hard to make those comparable, so that we have Puget

 3   Sound Energy Region program is comparable to the one in

 4   the Avista territory, comparable to the one that's

 5   proposed down by Yakima and there's so many variables.

 6   I'm looking at this as a possible element that would be

 7   of some assistance to us to try to craft programs that

 8   are comparable.

 9            MR. BEAMAN:  It would be because it is done

10   independently of our agency and it is done actually all

11   across the nation now by county.  So you would have in

12   this state something comparable from county to county,

13   that would indicate what a really low income individual

14   income should be and what factors go into that income

15   calculation.

16            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  And you said you would send

17   in information about that?

18            MR. BEAMAN:  I will certainly do that.

19            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  Will you copy Mr. ffitch and

20   Mr. Fassio?  I'm speaking about the Attorney General's

21   Office, to make sure we can see that.

22            MR. BEAMAN:  If possible, I will have it

23   before you leave tomorrow.  The only thing that it

24   doesn't really do too well is to take a look at who is

25   a vulnerable population, why are they vulnerable.  Many
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 1   of the folks are vulnerable because of their chronic

 2   conditions, and the medication and the other medical

 3   expenses they have are tremendous.

 4            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  Thank you very much.

 5            CHAIRMAN OSHIE:  Mr. Beamer, just to follow up

 6   on the Chairman's question, is that being produced by

 7   the census bureau or the government or is it the state?

 8            MR. BEAMAN:  No, it's produced by a national

 9   firm.

10            CHAIRMAN OSHIE:  A national firm?

11            MR. BEAMAN:  A nonprofit organization.

12            CHAIRMAN OSHIE:  Okay.  And then when you've

13   come before us before and testified, you've talked

14   about the social security program and the lack thereof

15   --

16            MR. BEAMER:  Correct.

17            CHAIRMAN OSHIE:  -- And a raise in the cost of

18   living, and I think there was an increase this year as

19   opposed to 2009 and '10, correct?  Could you just --

20            MR. BEAMER:  There is.

21            CHAIRMAN OSHIE:  Clarify the record for that,

22   please?

23            MR. BEAMER:  Yes, there is a small increase.

24   I believe it was about two percent.

25            CHAIRMAN OSHIE:  Okay.  Thanks.
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 1            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  Last person I have signed up

 2   is Ms. Karen Eberts.

 3            MS. EBERTS:  My name is Karen Eberts,

 4   E-b-e-r-t-s, and I've been coming here for many years

 5   and you may remember me.  I remember you.

 6            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  I do.

 7            MS. EBERTS:  Every year I come, and I don't

 8   come for myself so much because I'm one of the lucky

 9   ones.  My husband and I planned for the future.  We

10   worked very hard, and while we're not wealthy, we've

11   done a lot of things to make ourselves comfortable.

12   But every year, every single year, the rates go up.

13   And while I'm not suffering and I don't plan on

14   suffering any time in the future, I do feel sorry for

15   some of the people.  I'm not asking the Commission to

16   give them money for -- Well, the papers that I have

17   here talk about Avista proposal's too high -- these are

18   from this year.  This one was just September 4th that

19   they request -- this is actually a cut in national gas

20   rates, which really surprised me, although every time

21   they do lower it, they turn around six months later and

22   raise it up and sometimes more than what they cut it.

23   So are we really getting a break?

24            I also got a letter from your website that

25   comes to me from Avista, and it was a little confusing
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 1   because I wasn't sure if there was or there wasn't an

 2   increase.  It was a little confusing.  I just don't

 3   know what to do anymore.  I watched the news right

 4   before I came down here and they were talking about the

 5   state of America and how -- I think it's 1.2 or 1.5,

 6   we've only had that much of an increase in our economic

 7   --in our economy over the past year.  I don't know if

 8   you guys walk around the streets of Spokane, I assume

 9   you're not from Spokane.

10            COMMISSIONER GOLTZ:  Commissioner Jones is

11   from Spokane.

12            COMMISSIONER JONES:  Yes, originally.

13            MS. EBERTS:  Well, I stand corrected.  Walk

14   around the streets.  Spokane, when I first came here,

15   and I came here over almost 30 years ago, when I first

16   came here, I was so impressed because these people are

17   so kind and so giving.  When there's a disaster, they

18   open up their pocketbooks and their hearts and they

19   help people and I've been so impressed by that.  But

20   it's getting harder these days because a lot of people

21   just don't have the money.  They're out of work.

22         There's people on the streets begging for money,

23   which doesn't look good for our city.  I just don't

24   know what to say, gentlemen.  We can't afford it.

25   Avista needs to start changing, and I don't see where
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 1   they're doing it.  I mentioned this before, I don't see

 2   where they've made any changes at all.  If I ran my

 3   household like Avista runs their company, I would be a

 4   very wealthy person.

 5            Anyway, thank you for letting me come and

 6   complain.  I love it every year, and I will see you

 7   next year.

 8            CHAIRMAN GOLTZ:  Thank you very much, Mrs.

 9   Eberts.  That comes to the end of the list of people

10   that have signed up, unless there's more.  I don't

11   think there are.  So does anyone else who did not give

12   a statement now inspired to give a statement?  Now's

13   your chance.  If not, then we also have an opportunity,

14   if you think about it tonight, later on, you can file a

15   written comment and Mr. Kouchi has some information on

16   how to do that -- or actually, we're having another

17   public hearing tomorrow out in the Spokane Valley, City

18   Council Chambers as well at noon.  So with that, I just

19   want to thank you, the City of Spokane for making this

20   facility available to us again this year, and just

21   emphasize that these are important, and we will, you

22   know, we read every single written comment that is --

23   that comes in the door as well.  And we get many more

24   written comments than we get oral comments, but the

25   oral comments all have a very special meaning.  So I
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 1   appreciate you coming out tonight and doing that.

 2   Anything else from my colleagues?  Then we're

 3   adjourned.  Thank you very much for coming.

 4            (The meeting was adjourned at 6:44 p.m.)
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